UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICUETURE -~ -

BEFORE THE SECRETARY OF AGRICULTURE

In re: ) P & S Docket No. D-12- 0 10lo

)

Ark-Mo Livestock Auction, LLC., )
)

Kent E. O'Neal, )
)

and )

)

Janet L. O’'Neal )
)

)

)

Respondents ) Complaint

There is reason to believe that respondents Ark-Mo Livestock Auction, LLC,,
Kent E. O’'Neal, and Janet L. O’Neal have willfully violated the Packers and
Stockyards Act, 1921, as amended and supplemented (7 U.S.C. § 181 et seq.) and
the regulations promulgated thereunder by the Secretary of Agriculture (9 C.F.R. §
201.1 et seq.). Therefore, this Complaint is issued alleging the following:

L

(@ Respondent Ark-Mo Livestock Auction, LLC., was at all times material
herein a limited liabﬂity company brganized under the laws of the State of
Missouri, which had its principal place of business and mailing address located at
10465 Highway 67 South, Harviell, Missouri, 63945.
(b)  OnJanuary 21, 2009, respondents sent correspondence to complainant to

provide formal notice that they were ceasing their operations. As respondent Ark-




Mo Livestock Auction, LLC., no longer operates, its mailing address is the same as
that of its owners, réspondehts Kent E. O’'Neal and Janet L. O’'Neal.
(¢0  Respondent Kent E. O’Neal is an individual whose home address is in the
State of Arkansas. In order to protect the personal privacy of Respondent Kent E.
O’Neal his address is not included in this Complaint but has been provided to the
Hearing Clerk for purpose-of effectixating service of procesé.
(d) Respondent Janet L. O'Neal is an individual whose home address is in the
State of Arkansas. In order to protect the personal privacy of Respondent Janet L.
O’Neal her address is not included in this Complaint but has been provided to the
Hearing Clerk for purpose of effectuating service of process.
() Respondent Ark-Mo Livestock Auction, LLC., under the direction,
management, and control of respondents Kent E. O’'Neal and Janet L. O'Neal, at all
times material herein was:
(1)  Engaged in the business of conducting and operating Ark-Mo Livestock
Auctioh, LLC., a stockyard posted under and subjeét to the proﬁsions of the
Act;
(20  Engaged in the business of a market agency selling livestock on a
commission basis in commerce;
3 Registéred with the Secretary of Agriculture as a markef égency to sell
livestock on a commission basis in commerce.
() Respondents Kent E. O'Neal and Janet L. O’Neal at all times material herein

were each:




(1) A manager of respondents Ark-Mo Livestock Auction, LLC.;
(2)  An owner of 50% of the stock issued by respondent Ark-Mo Livestock
* Auction, LLC.; | | o
(3)  Responsible for‘the direction, management and control of respondent
Ark-Mo Livestock Auction, LLC.

® On January 26, 2009, Grain Inspection, Packers and Stockyards
Administration (GIPSA), Packers and Stockyards Program, provided formal notice
to respondents that respondents’ registration under the Act had been terminated in

light of respondents’ notice of January 21, 2009, that they were ceasing operations.

II.

On or about May 14, 2008, respondents were informed by the Regional
Director, Midwestern Regional Office, Packers and Stockyards Program, GIPSA
that a review of respondents’ annual report for the year ending December 31, 2007,
indicated that respondents were operating while insolvent. The letter specified that
respondents had current assé_ts of approximately $5,326 and current liabiiities of
approximately $85,000 resulting in an excess of current liabilities over current
assets in the approximate amount of $79,674. Accordingly, respondents were
advised that they were in violation of 7 U.S.C. § 204.

| o
Respondents failed to rﬁaintain and use properly their custodial account for

shippers’ proceeds, thereby endangering the faithful and prompt accounting
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therefor and payment of the portions thereof due the owners, conéignors, and
shippers of livestocic, in that:

(a) Asof November 23, 2008, respondents had outstanding checks in the
amount of $16,540.71 drawn on their custodial account, and had, to offset these
checks, a negative bank balance of ($13,352.14), and no proceeds on hand or current
proceeds receivable, resulting in a custodial account shortage of $29,892.85.

(b) As of January 27, 2009, respondents had outstanding checks in the
amount of $39,307.23 drawn on their custodial account, and had, to offset these
checks, a negative bank balance of ($9,601.14), and no proce.e.ds on hand of current
proceeds receivable, resulting in a custodial account shortage of $48,908.37.

()  Onor about the dates listed in Appendix A and in the transactions
described therein, respondents sold livestock on a commission basis in commerce
and deposited the proceeds fhereﬁ'om into tﬁeir general account and failea to
reimburse their custodial account. Respondents then issued checks drawn from
their general account to reimburse their custodial account and these checks were
returned unpaid by their bank because respondents did not have sufficient funds
available in their general a'c‘count.tc; pay such“ checks when bresented.

(d  On or about the aates listed in Appendix B and in the transactions
described therein, respondents issued checks drawn on their custodial account for
shippers’ proceeds for purposes other than (1) payment of the net proceeds to the
consignor or shipper, or to any person that the market agency knows is entitled to

payment, (2) to pay lawful charges against the consignment of livestock which the




market agency shall, in its capacity as agent, be réquiréd to pay, or (3) to obtain any
sums due the market agency as compensation for its services.

()  The custodial account shortages described herein were due in part to
respondents’ failure to deposit in the custodial account, within the time prescribed
by the regulations, an amount equal to the proceeds receivable for sales of
consigned livestock. The custodial account shortages described herein were also due
in part to respondents’ withdrawal of funds from their custodial account for
purposes other than (1) payment of the net proceeds to the consignor or shipper, or
to any person that the market agency knows is entitled to payment, (2) to pay
lawful éharges against the éonsignment of livestock which the market agency shall,
in its capacity as agent, be required to pay, or (3) to obtain any sums due the

market agency as compensation for its services.

v,

(@)  Onor about the dates and in the amounts listed in Appendix C and in
the transactions described therein, respondents issuéd checks drawn on their
custodial account for shippers’ proceeds as payment for livestock purchases that
v§ere returned unpaid by the bank upon which it was drawri because respondents
did not have sufficient funds available in their custodial account to pay such checks
when presented.

(b) By issuing the checks that were returned unpaid by the bank upon

which they were drawn on the dates referenced in Appendix C of this complaint, the




respondents failed to pay, when due, the full amount of the livestock purchase

prices within the time period required by the Act.

V.

On or about the dates and in the transactions set forth in Appendix D,
respondents purchased hvestock- and failed to pay, when due, the full purchase price
of such livestock. This failure to pay when due was the result of respondents’
failure to have and maintain sufficient funds on deposit and available in the
custodial account upon which such checks wére drawn to pay such checks when first
presented. Respondents’ ba.nk subsequently honored the checks on the dates
indicafed in Appendix D.

VL

By reason of the facfs alleged in paragraphs I, Il and III of this Complaint,
respondents have willfully yiolated sections 307 and 312(a) of the Act (7 U.S.C. §§
208, 213(a)); and section 201.42 of the regulations (9 C.F.R. § 201.42). |

By reason of the facts alleged in paragraphs I, IV and V of this Complaint,
respondents have willfully violated sections 812(a) and 409 of the Act (7 U.S.C. §§

213(a) and 228b) and section 201.43 of the regulations (9 C.F.R. § 201.43).

WHEREFORE, it is hereby ordered that this Complaint shall be served upon
the respondents for the purpose of determining whether respondents have willfully

violated the Act and regulations. Respondents shall have twenty (20) days after
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receipt of this Complaint in which to file an answer with the Hearing Clerk, Room

1031-South Building, United States Department of Agriculture, 1400 Independence

- Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9200, in accordance with the Rules of

Practice governing proceedings under the Act (7 C.F.R. § 1.130 et seq.). Allegations
not answered shall be deemed admitted fqr the purpose of this proceeding. Failure
to file an answer will constitute an admission of all the material allegations of this
Complaint.
The Packers and Stockyards Program; Grain Inspection, Packers and
Stockyards Administration requests:
1. That unless respondents fail to file an answer within the time allowed,
or file an answer admit_ting all the material allegations of this pomp_laint, this
proceeding be set for oral hearing in accordance wit.h the Rules of Practice;
and
2. That such order or orders be issued, including an order requiring
respondents to cease and desist from the violations of the Act and the
regulations fouﬁd to‘e.xist and assessing such civil penalties as are authorized

by the Act and warranted under the circumstances.




Krishna Ramaraju

Attorney for Complainant

Office of the General Counsel

United States Department of Agriculture
Room 2319

1400 Independence Avenue, S.W.
Washington, D.C. 20250-1400
Telephone: (202) 690-0672

Facsimile: (202) 690-4322

KRIS RAMARAJU@OGC.USDA.GOV

Done at Washington, D.C.

this_/3 day of Qgccm!:gc , 2011

Alan R. Christian

Deputy Administrator
Packers and Stockyards Program
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Appendix A
Sale Date | Buyer Purchase | Custodial Date General
Amount | Account Account Check
Reimbursement | Returned as NSF
Date
11/17/2008 | Dwaine $10,125.10 | 11/18/2008 11/18/2008
Reed ‘
11/17/2008 | Kent O'Neal | $4,547.50 | 11/18/2008 11/18/2008
11/17/2008 | K&D Farms | $21.00 11/18/2008 11/18/2008
11/17/2008 | Check Smith | $3,285.31 | 11/18/2008 11/18/2008
11/17/2008 | Ark-Mo $3,375.25 | 11/18/2008 11/18/2008
Livestock
11/17/2008 | Reed Farm $457.60 11/18/2008 11/18/2008
11/17/2008 | Straightway | $6,939.47 | 11/18/2008 11/18/2008
Farm . : :
11/17/2008 | Sharon $25.00 11/18/2008 11/18/2008
Darby :
12/01/2008 | Ark-Mo $4,043.66 | 12/01/2008 12/03/2008
Livestock
12/01/2008 | Dwaine $15,394.42 } 12/01/2008 12/03/2008
Reed
12/01/2008 | Nathan $2,461.45 | 12/01/2008 12/03/2008
: Carter
12/01/2008 | Kent O’Neal | $2,000.00 | 12/01/2008 12/03/2008
12/01/2008 | Check Smith | $10,297.07 | 12/01/2008 12/03/2008
12/01/2008 | Ark-Mo $4,031.89 | 12/01/2008 12/03/2008
Livestock
. 12/01/2008 | Ark-Mo $1,351.25 | 12/01/2008 12/03/2008
" Custom ‘
Feedlot
12/01/2008 | Scott $755.05 12/01/2008 12/03/2008
Lovelady
12/01/2008 | Shane $2,866.75 | 12/01/2008 12/03/2008
O’Neal '
© 12/01/2008 | Michael $4,680.00 | 12/01/2008 12/03/2008
f Gardner
12/01/2008 | Calvin $2,340.00 | 12/01/2008 12/03/2008
Scowden
12/01/2008 | Charles $5,660.00 | 12/01/2008 12/03/2008
Poeppelmyer '

e




Appendix B

Item Purchased

‘| Sale Date Seller's Name Payment Amount
11/17/2008 John Hert Hammers $10.80
11/17/2008 Bud Copeland Hens/Roosters $22.50
11/17/2008 Ear] Christian Barrels/Miscellaneous | $111.60
12/1/2008 George Million Chickens/Rabbits $21.15
12/8/2008 Earl Christian Tools/Barrels $36.90
12/8/2008 Gene Blankenship | Tools/Posts $234.45
12/8/2008 { John Hert Tools/Miscellaneous | $518.85
112/15/2008 | John Hert Tools $154.80
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Appendix C

B&H Cattle

Sale Date Seller’s Number of | Payment Date Date Check

Name Head of Amount Custodial returned
' Cattle Sold Check NSF
Issued Unpaid

10/13/2008 | Sandi 1 $260.69 10/13/2008 1/12/2009
Thomas

12/01/2008 | S&S 11 $4,506.23 12/01/2008 | 1/12/2009

12/01/2008 | Bill Kurz 14 $4,345.65 12/01/2008 12/18/2008

12/08/2008 | Leroy 13 $5,752.562 12/08/2008 12/11/2008
Murray

112/08/2008 | Larry Ford |13 $4,518.72 12/08/2008 | 12/22/2008

12/08/2008 | Leroy 13 $5,904.69 12/08/2008 | 12/11/2008
Dobbins ‘

12/08/2008 | Leroy 9 $3,875.38 12/08/2008 | 12/19/2008
Foster

12/15/2008 | Shirley Sue | 33 $8,5694.23 12/15/2008 | 12/26/2008
Ranch

12/01/2008 | Betty 1 $834.56 12/01/2008 | 12/09/2008

' Beaird - ' .

12/01/2008 | Eric Boyers | 4 $1,125.32 12/01/2008 | 1/02/2009

12/01/2008 | David 1 $321.75 12/01/2008 | 12/10/2008
Gettings J

12/01/2008 | Ken Baker |1 $525.96 12/01/2008 | 12/11/2008

12/08/2008 | Ethel 35 $1,137.53 12/08/2008 | 12/19/2008
Powell

12/08/2008 | Martha 3 $963.64 12/08/2008 | 12/29/2008

: Swik

12/08/2008 | Richard 2 $804.93 12/08/2008 | 12/11/2008
Adair

12/08/2008 | A.J. Austin | 10 $1,552.02 12/08/2008 | 12/11/2008

12/15/2008 | Jerry 5 $1,981.67 12/15/2008 | 12/24/2008
Tolliver

12/15/2008 | Daniel 6 $1,400.79 12/15/2008 12/18/2008
Dorris

12/156/2008 | Steve 11 $2,689.89 12/15/2008 | 12/29/2008
Brasher/ :
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Appendix D

Sale Date | Seller’s Payment Date Date Date Number of Days

Name Amount Custodial Instrument | Check from Date Check
Check Returned Cleared First Returned
Issued Bank until Check
| : : : . Cleared

9/08/2008 | Dustin $53.32 9/08/2008 11/24/2008 11/25/2008 | 1
Manzitto

11/10/2008 | Ed $2,692.50 | 11/10/2008 | 11/21/2008 11/24/2008 | 3
Sutherland

11/10/2008 | Sally Climer | $994.46 11/10/2008 | 11/24/2008 11/25/2008 | 1

11/17/2008 | Everett $168.90 11/17/2008 | 11/21/2008 11/24/2008 | 3
Saylors

11/17/2008 | Linda $30.42 11/17/2008 | 11/24/2008 11/25/2008 | 1
Pblasterer

11/17/2008 | Thomas $69.24 11/17/2008 | 11720/2008 | 11/21/2008 | 1
Dodd o

11/17/2008 | Jeff Arnold | $357.00 11/17/2008 | 11/21/2008 11/24/2008 | 3

11/17/2008 | Nathan $177.42 11/17/2008 | 11/24/2008 11/25/2008 | 1
Carter '

11/17/2008 | Kevin $497.26 11/17/2008 | 11/28/2008 12/01/2008 | 3
Anderson :

11/17/2008 | Richard $868.54 11/17/2008 { 11/20/2008 11/21/2008 | 1
Porter

11/17/2008 | Charlie $291.35 11/17/2008 | 12/01/2008 12/02/2008 | 1
Johnson, Jr. : : :

11/17/2008 | Gene $265.24 11/17/2008 | 11/20/2008 11/21/2008 | 1
Blankenship .

11/17/2008 | Jesse Gray $671.88 11/17/2008 | 11/20/2008 11/21/2008 | 1

11/17/2008 | Gary Wright | $279.66 11/17/2008 | 11/20/2008 11/21/2008 | 1

11/17/2008 | Darnell $6,685.66 11/17/2008 | 11/19/2008 11/20/2008 | 1
Brothers
Farm

11/17/2008 { AJ. Austin $489.34 11/17/2008 | 11/24/2008 11/25/2008 | 1

11/17/2008 | Tyler Austin | $2,285.29 | 11/17/2008 | 11/20/2008 11/21/2008 | 1

11/17/2008 | Edward $1,066.57 | 11/17/2008 | 11/21/2008 | 11/24/2008 | 3
Lunyou . ' :

11/17/2008 | L.D. Bowers | $113.73 11/17/2008 | 11/24/2008 11/25/2008 | 1

11/17/2008 | Robert Hall | $1,159.25 11/17/2008 | 11/20/2008 11/21/2008 | 1

11/17/2008 | Allen Elliott | $2,076.28 11/17/2008 | 11/24/2008 11/25/2008 | 1

11/17/2008 | Steve $5651.41 11/17/2008 | 11/21/2008 11/24/2008 | 3
Hagger

11/17/2008 | Dwaine $3,852.14 | 11/17/2008 | 11/19/2008 11/20/2008 | 1
Reed

11/24/2008 | Rocky Sisk | $40.00 11/24/2008 { 12/1/2008 12/2/2008 |1

11/24/2008 | Dave $99.34" 11/24/2008 | 12/9/2008 "12/10/2008 | 1

' Bearden ) '
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11/24/2008 | Shane $255.81 11/24/2008 | 12/5/2008 | 12/8/2008 | 3
. (O'Neal : :
11/24/2008 | Milton $1,627.86 | 11/24/2008 | 11/26/2008 11/28/2008 { 2
Ladymon
11/24/2008 | Allen $1,498.68 | 11/24/2008 | 12/1/2008 12/2/2008 | 1
Loveless
11/24/2008 | Jack Pipkin | $610.82 11/24/2008 | 12/4/2008 12/5/2008 |1
11/24/2008 | Kevin and $1,935.31 | 11/24/2008 | 11/26/2008 11/28/2008 | 2
Royce
Hutson
11/24/2008 | Mary Hicks | $3,251.25 | 11/24/2008 | 12/1/2008 12/2/2008 | 1
11/24/2008 | Sherry $795.97 11/24/2008 | 11/28/2008 12/1/2008 |3
Daniel
11/24/2008 | Eddie Cagle | $1,851.27 | 11/24/2008 | 11/28/2008 12/1/2008 |3
11/24/2008 | Jay Brittian | $125.86 | 11/24/2008 | 11/28/2008 12/1/2008 | 3
11/24/2008 | Dwaine $5,072.561 | 11/24/2008 | 11/26/2008 11/28/2008 | 2
Reed
11/24/2008 { Cecil $168.73 11/24/2008 | 12/1/2008 12/2/2008 | 1
Massey
11/24/2008 | Nathan $1,223.56 | 11/24/2008 } 12/1/2008 12/2/2008 |1
Carter ‘
111/24/2008 | John Tilley | $2,515.43 | 11/24/2008 | 11/26/2008 11/28/2008 | 2
| 11/24/2008 | Gary $2,462.05 | 11/24/2008 | 11/28/2008 12/1/2008 | 3
t Wilkens
i 11/24/2008 | D-S Farms $640.64 11/24/2008 | 12/1/2008 12/2/2008 |1 :
12/1/2008 | Bradley $50.00 12/1/2008 12/12/2008 12/15/2008 | 3 j
Felps i
12/1/2008 | Pat Leroux | $318.22 12/1/2008 12/04/2008 12/05/2008 | 1 !
12/1/2008 | George $1,972.33 | 12/1/2008 12/5/2008 12/16/2008 | 10 I:
Million
12/1/2008 | Jimmy $42.36 12/1/2008 | 12/4/2008 12/5/2008 |1
P Massey ~
12/1/2008 | Ershel $71.21 12/1/2008 12/5/2008 12/8/2008 | 3
Qsburn
12/1/2008 | Ernest $783.85 12/1/2008 12/4/2008 - | 12/5/2008 | 1
Hemmerlein :
12/1/2008 | Ruby Littell | $420.53 12/1/2008 12/23/2008 12/24/2008 | 1
12/1/2008 | Vernon $34,938.73 | 12/1/2008 12/3/2008 12/4/2008 |1
Pogue
12/1/2008 | Donald $3,746.80 | 12/1/2008 12/4/2008 12/5/2008 | 1 l»
Henson, Sr.. . : - ;
12/1/2008 | Roger Ellis | $834.17 " 12/1/2008 12/24/2008 12/26/2008 | 2 3
12/1/2008 Glen Seals $6,285.95 12/1/2008 12/4/2008 12/5/2008 1 1
i 12/1/2008 Dwaine $7,261.00 12/1/2008 12/3/2008 12/4/2008 1 '
: Reed
12/1/2008 | Michael $1,549.29 | 12/1/2008 12/5/2008 12/18/2008 | 13
Griffin
12/1/2008 | Sam Powell | $339.13 12/1/2008 12/5/2008 12/15/2008 | 10
12/1/2008 Marcus $377.74 12/1/2008 12/8/2008 12/18/2008 | 10
Coblentz
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12/1/2008 | Bill Baker $342.91 12/1/2008 12/9/2008 12/10/2008 | 1

12/1/2008 | Shane $15,682.77 | 12/1/2008 12/4/2008 12/5/2008 |1
O’'Neal '

12/1/2008 Scott - $136.20 - 12/1/2008 12/8/2008 12/22/2008 | 14
Lovelady

12/8/2008 Gene $19.36 12/8/2008 12/9/2008 12/10/2008 | 1
Blankenship

12/8/2008 | K&D Farms | $32.63 12/8/2008 12/9/2008 12/10/2008 | 1

12/8/2008 Wilburn $298.73 12/8/2008 12/10/2008 12/16/2008 | 6
Banks

12/8/2008 | Tim Carter | $124.98 12/8/2008 12/19/2008 12/22/2008 | 3

12/8/2008 Dale Leclare | $105.97 12/8/2008 12/10/2008 12/11/2008 | 1

12/8/2008 | Perry $313.36 12/8/2008 12/11/2008 12/12/2008 | 1
Schafer , ' ‘ _ .

12/8/2008 | Denver $230.17 12/8/2008 12/9/2008 12/10/2008 | 1
Ligons

12/8/2008 | Travis $126.98 12/8/2008 12/10/2008 12/11/2008 | 1
Reynolds )

12/8/2008 | Russell $92.13 12/8/2008 12/22/2008 12/23/2008 | 1
Reynolds

12/8/2008 | John $175.32 12/8/2008 12/11/2008 12/12/2008 | 1
Brittain

12/8/2008 Dale $305.16 12/8/2008 12/12/2008 12/15/2008 | 3
Hudson : : ’ -

12/8/2008 | Cheryl $200.48 12/8/2008 12/10/2008 12/11/2008 | 1
Robinson

12/8/2008 Chris $115.14 12/8/2008 12/9/2008 12/10/2008 | 1
Owens

12/8/2008 Darren $1,129.98 | 12/8/2008 12/10/2008 12/18/2008 | 8
Gallaher ’

12/8/2008 | Jimmy $338.66 12/8/2008 12/10/2008 12/16/2008 | 6
Massey

12/8/2008 | Mike Wilson | $368.54 12/8/2008 12/10/2008 12/16/2008 | 6

12/8/2008 Chuck $3,119.74 | 12/8/2008 12/10/2008 | 12/16/2008 | 6
Laxton - '

12/8/2008 | Bill Milner $467.79 12/8/2008 12/11/2008 12/18/2008 | 7

12/8/2008 Donnie $3,258.47 | 12/8/2008 12/11/2008 12/16/2008 | 5
Presley

12/8/2008 | Dessie $1,844.31 | 12/8/2008 12/9/2008 12/10/2008 | 1
Wilson

12/8/2008 Snake River | $883.03 12/8/2008 12/9/2008 12/11/2008 | 2
Farm

12/8/2008 Gene Tubb $671.56 12/8/2008 12/10/2008 12/16/2008 | 6

12/8/2008 | Jack $1,171.32 | 12/8/2008 12/10/2008 12/16/2008 | 6
McKinney

12/8/2008 | Robert $289.42 12/8/2008 12/11/2008 12/12/2008 | 1
Stonecipher

12/8/2008 | Pete $2,456.29 | 12/8/2008 12/12/2008 12/15/2008 | 3
Katsaliros
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12/8/2008 Guy $1,817.67 | 12/8/2008 12/12/2008 12/15/2008 | 3
Shepard
12/8/2008 D&D Farms | $160.00 12/8/2008 12/22/2008 12/23/2008 | 1
| 12/8/2008 Dwaine $6,977.71 12/8/2008 12/10/2008 12/16/2008 | 6
Reed
12/8/2008 Stucker $533.48 12/8/2008 12/12/2008 12/15/2008 | 3
' Brothers, : '
Inc.
12/8/2008 | John $1,655.35 | 12/8/2008 12/11/2008 12/18/2008 | 7
Stucker
12/8/2008 Nathan $2,663.84 | 12/8/2008 12/15/2008 12/16/2008 | 1
: Carter
12/8/2008 Tim $1,415.69 12/8/2008 12/10/2008 12/18/2008 | 8
Christian
12/8/2008 Scott $139.60 12/8/2008 12/12/2008 12/15/2008 | 3
Lovelady : :
12/15/2008 | Dwaine $126.00 12/15/2008 | 12/29/2008 12/30/2008 | 1
Reed ' :
12/15/2008 ! Junior $279.95 12/15/2008 | 12/17/2008 12/18/2008 | 1
Baucom
12/15/2008 | Carl Warren | $824.83 12/15/2008 | 12/19/2008 12/22/2008 | 3
12/156/2008 | Ed Baker $316.99 12/15/2008 | 12/19/2008 12/22/2008 | 3
12/15/2008 | Bill Willis $199.97 12/15/2008 | 12/17/2008 12/18/2008 | 1
12/16/2008 | Blaine $258.02 12/15/2008 | 12/30/2008 12/31/2008 | 1
Hoffman
12/15/2008 | A.J. Austin | $30.64 12/156/2008 | 12/31/2008 1/1/2009 1
12/16/2008 | Chuck $1.703.60 | 12/15/2008 | 12/17/2008 - | 12/18/2008 | 1
Laxton ‘
12/15/2008 | Lonnie Lee | $3567.24 12/15/2008 | 12/23/2008 12/24/2008 | 1
Boyd
12/15/2008 | Carl Warren | $79.42 12/15/2008 | 12/19/2008 12/22/2008 | 3
12/15/2008 | Marvin $216.17 12/15/2008 | 12/19/2008 12/22/2008 | 3
Howard
12/15/2008 | Randy $176.16 12/15/2008 | 12/19/2008 12/22/2008 | 3
Benson
12/15/2008 | Phillip $761.07 . 12/156/2008 | 12/17/2008 12/18/2008 | 1
L Rawling ' ' ‘ ,
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